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EXPLANATORY NOTE

We refer to Highwoods Properties, Inc. as the “Canyy’ Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership as ti@pérating Partnershipthe
Company’s common stock as “Common Stock” or “Comn&irares,” the Company’s preferred stock as “PrefeStock” or Preferre
Shares,” the Operating Partnership’s common pastrigiinterests as “Common Units” and the OperaBagnerships preferred partnerst
interests as “Preferred Units." References to “evad] “our”mean the Company and the Operating Partnershilectiokly, unless the conte
indicates otherwise.

The Company conducts its activities through ther@jireg Partnership and is its sole general parffiee. partnership agreement provi
that the Operating Partnership will assume andvgdan due, or reimburse the Company for paymerdlb€osts and expenses relating tc
ownership and operations of, or for the benefittiog Operating Partnership. The partnership agreefoether provides that all expense:
the Company are deemed to be incurred for the erighe Operating Partnership.

Certain information contained herein is presenteafaApril 21, 2014, the latest practicable date for financial infotima prior to ths
filing of this Quarterly Report.

This report combines the Quarterly Reports on F&¥Q for the period ended March 31, 20d4the Company and the Operal
Partnership. We believe combining the quarterlyregpinto this single report results in the follogibenefits:

» combined reports better reflect how managemenfrarestors view the business as a single operatiitg

» combined reports enhance investors' understandirtjeoCompany and the Operating Partnership by lemathem to view th
business as a whole and in the same manner as emaeatj

e combined reports are more efficient for the Compang the Operating Partnership and result in savimgime, effort and expen:
and

« combined reports are more efficient for investgrgduducing duplicative disclosure and providingragke document for their revie

To help investors understand the significant ddferes between the Company and the Operating Paripgthis report presents
following separate sections for each of the Compartythe Operating Partnership:

» Consolidated Financial Stateme

» the following Notes to Consolidated Financial Sta¢ats
* Note 7- Noncontrolling Interests; al
* Note 12- Earnings Per Share and Per L

» Item 4 -Controls and Procedures; :

* Item 6 - Certifications of CEO and CFO Pursuanections 302 and 906 of the Sarba@esey Act.
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PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share anchpee slata)

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land $ 394,230 % 393,60:
Buildings and tenant improvements 3,782,60 3,748,86!
Development in process 69,527 44,62
Land held for development 111,44 110,37-
4,357,81 4,297,46/
Less-accumulated depreciation (1,019,93) (985,24:)
Net real estate assets 3,337,88! 3,312,22.
Cash and cash equivalents 13,34« 10,18¢
Restricted cash 9,14( 14,16¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,412 $h&48, respectively 24,66 26,43(
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&3060 and $302, respectively 10,02¢ 26,40¢
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net ofvalace of $1,118 and $1,063, respectively 132,03t 126,01«
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates 28,83¢ 29,90:
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $100,639 and $92,220, resypelgt 218,83: 222,21:
Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalaiortization of $13,186 and $12,905,
respectively 45,23¢ 39,56:
Total Assets $ 381999 $ 3,807,10
Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnership and Equity:
Mortgages and notes payable $ 201255 $ 1,956,29
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedbil 198,85t 218,96
Financing obligations 26,44: 26,66¢
Total Liabilities 2,237,85. 2,201,92!
Commitments and contingencies
Noncontrolling interests in the Operating Partngrsh 112,80t 106,48(
Equity:
Preferred Stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 autbdrshares;

8.625% Series A Cumulative Redeemable PreferredeStiguidation preference $1,000 per share), 20,0

shares issued and outstanding 29,077 29,077
Common Stock, $.01 par value, 200,000,000 authdshares;

90,061,731 and 89,920,915 shares issued and aditejanespectively 901 89¢
Additional paid-in capital 2,367,50' 2,370,36:
Distributions in excess of net income availabledommon stockholders (946,53() (920,43))
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,929 (2,617

Total Stockholders’ Equity 1,448,03! 1,477,301
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates 21,29; 21,39¢

Total Equity 1,469,33. 1,498,69
Total Liabilities, Noncontrolling Interests in ti@perating Partnership and Equity $ 381999 §$ 380710

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share asjoun

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Rental and other revenues $ 148,45! $ 130,37
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 56,39( 46,59+
Depreciation and amortization 48,16¢ 40,08¢
General and administrative 10,71« 10,58:
Total operating expenses 115,26¢ 97,26¢
Interest expense:
Contractual 20,75( 22,79¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 652 94¢
Financing obligations (40) 121
21,36: 23,86¢
Other income:
Interest and other income 1,39¢ 1,78¢
Losses on debt extinguishment — (164)
1,39¢ 1,61¢
Income from continuing operations before activity h unconsolidated affiliates 13,22 10,86¢
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffis (29 43¢
Income from continuing operations 13,19: 11,30(
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations — 2,34¢
Impairments of real estate assets — (2,12¢)
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 384 1,24¢
384 2,46(
Net income 13,57¢ 13,76(
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim the Operating Partnership (39¢) (581)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates (423%) (20%)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627)
Net income available for common stockholders $ 12,12¢ $ 12,34¢
Earnings per Common Share — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 01: $ 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available fianmon stockholders — 0.0
Net income available for common stockholders $ 0.1z % 0.1t
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding — basic 89,96¢ 81,02¢
Earnings per Common Share — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1: $ 0.12
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders — 0.0z
Net income available for common stockholders $ 0.1z $ 0.1f
Weighted average Common Shares outstanding —dlilute 93,03( 84,86
Dividends declared per Common Share $ 0428 $ 042t
Net income available for common stockholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 11,75¢ $  9,99¢
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 372 2,351
Net income available for common stockholders $ 12,12¢ § 12,34¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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Comprehensive income:

Net income

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges
Amortization of cash flow hedges

Total other comprehensive income/(loss)

Total comprehensive income

Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nonodirty interests

Comprehensive income attributable to common stddens

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2014 2013

13,57¢ $ 13,76(

s 39¢
(1,402) 28C
92¢ 78¢
(311) 1,45¢
13,26¢ 15,21¢
(821) (784)

12,44 $ 14,43¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Equity
(Unaudited and in thousands, except share amounts)

Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Additional Paid- Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares In Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
Balance at December 31, 2013 89,920,91 $ 89 $ 29,077 $ 2,370,360 $ (2,61) $ 21,3% $ (920,43) $ 1,498,69
Issuances of Common Stock, net of shares redeepnéaixf
withholdings (8,427) — — 152 — — — 152
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock 4,417 — — 162 — — — 162
Dividends on Common Stock — — — — — (38,229 (38,229
Dividends on Preferred Stock — — — — — (627) (627)
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value — — (7,439 — — — (7,439
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates — — — — (522) — (522)
Issuances of restricted stock 144,82t — — — — — — —
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfgiture — 2 — 4,26( — — — 4,26:
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteee the
Operating Partnership — — — — — (39¢) (39¢)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees
consolidated affiliates — — — — 4232 (423) —
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — 13,57¢ 13,57¢
Other comprehensive loss — — — (313 — — (311)
Total comprehensive income 13,26t
Balance at March 31, 2014 90,061,73 $ 901 $ 29,077 $ 2,367,500 $ (292;) $ 21,297 % (946,53() $ 1,469,33
Series A Distributions in
Cumulative Non-controlling Excess of Net
Redeemable Accumulated Interests in Income Available
Number of Common Preferred Additional Paid- Other Compre- Consolidated for Common
Common Shares Stock Shares In Capital hensive Loss Affiliates Stockholders Total
Balance at December 31, 2012 80,311,43 $ 802 $ 29,077 $ 2,040,300 $ (12,62 $ 4,75  $ (897,419 $ 1,164,89
Issuances of Common Stock, net of shares redeepnéaixf
withholdings 1,664,51! 17 — 55,78 — — — 55,80«
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock 10,07: — — 351 — — — 351
Dividends on Common Stock — — — — — (34,259 (34,259
Dividends on Preferred Stock — — — — — (627) (627)
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opierg
Partnership to fair value — — (23,807 — — — (23,807
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated
affiliates — — — — (265) — (265)
Issuances of restricted stock 144,56t — — — — — — —
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfgiture — 1 — 3,43¢ — — — 3,44(
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteee the
Operating Partnership — — — — — (581) (581)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteees
consolidated affiliates — — — — 202 (203) —
Comprehensive income:
Net income — — — — — 13,76( 13,76(
Other comprehensive income — — — 1,45¢ — — 1,45¢
Total comprehensive income 15,21¢
Balance at March 31, 2013 82,130,59 $ 821 $ 29,077 $ 2,076,08. $ (11,170 % 4691 % (919,329 $ 1,180,17:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities
Share-based compensation expense
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $tréiite rents receivable
Accrued interest on mortgages and notes receivable
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of cash flow hedges
Amortization of mortgages and notes payable fduneadjustments
Impairments of real estate assets
Losses on debt extinguishment
Net gains on disposition of property
Equity in (earnings)/losses of unconsolidated iaffis
Changes in financing obligations
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifés
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued straight-line rents receivable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiebil
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatesigible assets, net of cash acquired
Investments in development in process
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts
Investments in building improvements
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated affties
Investments in mortgages and notes receivable
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites
Net cash (used in) investing activities
Financing activities:
Dividends on Common Stock
Redemptions of Common Units
Dividends on Preferred Stock
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&dgting Partnership
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Stock
Repurchase of shares related to tax withholdings
Borrowings on revolving credit facility
Repayments of revolving credit facility

Repavments of mortaaaes and notes pav

Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013
13,57¢ 13,76(
48,16¢ 42,29:

82 (136)
4,26 3,44(
1,12¢ 42¢

(118) —
652 94¢
92¢ 78¢
(809) —
— 1,12¢

— 164
(389 (1,249
29 (436)
(221) (10%)
78¢ 1,14t
717 (1,479
(5,260) (2,539
(6,457 (5,789
(25,690 (10,252
31,38¢ 42,11¢

= (88,337

(27,237) (4,979
(24,782 (18,009
(13,007 (13,10
— 14,97

23C 368
(10€) —
16,60+ —

— (429)
4,04: 10,26:

(44,257) (99,25/)
(38,225 (34,259
(93 —
(627) (627)
(1,249 (1,589
(522) (26%)
1,31: 59,01¢
14 (701)
(1,529 (2,519
96,10( 135,90(
(36,800 (61,400
(2.236 (37.214



Additions to deferred financing costs and otheaficing activities (96) (83%)

Net cash provided by financing activities 16,02¢ 55,52

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent $ 3,16(C $ (1,619

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.

8




Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent $ 3,16( $ (1,619
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio 10,18¢ 13,78:

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 13,34« $ 12,17(

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 25,05« § 21,881

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéh&incing activities:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges $ (1,409 $ 28C
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock 162 351
Changes in accrued capital expenditures 5,39¢ 5,15¢
Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets 3,121 6,467
Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs 3,697 4,87:
Unrealized gains on marketable securities of naalified deferred compensation plan 5¢ 28¢
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opieigy Partnership to fair value 7,43¢ 23,80:
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 16& 39C

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Unaudited and in thousands, except unit and pidarte)

Assets:
Real estate assets, at cost:
Land
Buildings and tenant improvements
Development in process
Land held for development

Less-accumulated depreciation
Net real estate assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $1,412 $h&48, respectively
Mortgages and notes receivable, net of allowan&3060 and $302, respectively
Accrued straight-line rents receivable, net of\alace of $1,118 and $1,063, respectively
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net of acdated amortization of $100,639 and $92,220, resypelgt

Prepaid expenses and other assets, net of accechalaiortization of $13,186 and $12,905,
respectively

Total Assets
Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnership Unitsand Equity:

Mortgages and notes payable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedbil
Financing obligations

Total Liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Operating Partnership Units:

Common Units, 2,936,955 and 2,943,872 outstandespectively

Series A Preferred Units (liquidation preferenced® per unit), 29,077 units issued and
outstanding

Total Redeemable Operating Partnership Units
Equity:
Common Units:
General partner Common Units, 925,899 and 924,b56&anding, respectively
Limited parther Common Units, 88,727,023 and 88,586 outstanding, respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Noncontrolling interests in consolidated affiliates
Total Equity

Total Liabilities, Redeemable Operating Partnersimgts and Equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
$ 394,230 % 393,60:
3,782,60 3,748,86!
69,527 44,62
111,44 110,37-
4,357,81 4,297,46/
(1,019,93) (985,24,
3,337,88! 3,312,22;
13,43( 10,28:
9,14( 14,16¢
24,66 26,43(
10,02¢ 26,40¢
132,03t 126,01
28,83¢ 29,90:
218,83: 222,21:
45,20: 39,56:
$ 3,820,04 $ 3,807,219
$ 201255 $ 1,956,29
198,80 218,88
26,44: 26,66
2,237,80 2,201,85!
112,80t 106,48(
29,071 29,071
141,88! 135,55
14,21¢ 14,50¢
1,407,76! 1,436,49
(2,929 (2,617
21,297 21,39¢
1,440,35! 1,469,79
$ 3,820,04 $ 3,807,19
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited and in thousands, except per unit anspunt

Three Months Ended March
31,

2014 2013
Rental and other revenues $ 148,45! $ 130,37
Operating expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 56,37 46,62(
Depreciation and amortization 48,16 40,08¢
General and administrative 10,73( 10,55¢
Total operating expenses 115,26¢ 97,26¢
Interest expense:
Contractual 20,75( 22,79¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs 652 94¢
Financing obligations (40) 121
21,36: 23,86¢
Other income:
Interest and other income 1,39¢ 1,78
Losses on debt extinguishment — (164)
1,39¢ 1,61¢
Income from continuing operations before activity h unconsolidated affiliates 13,22 10,86¢
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iatiis (29 38¢
Income from continuing operations 13,19 11,24°
Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations — 2,34¢
Impairments of real estate assets — (2,128
Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 384 1,244
384 2,46(
Net income 13,57¢ 13,707
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling intese consolidated affiliates (423%) (209%)
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627)
Net income available for common unitholders $ 12,52¢ $ 12,87:
Earnings per Common Unit — basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 0.1z $ 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available fonmon unitholders 0.01 0.0
Net income available for common unitholders $ 014 $ 0.1t
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — basic 92,49' 84,34¢
Earnings per Common Unit — diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 01: $ 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available fonmon unitholders 0.01 0.0<
Net income available for common unitholders $ 01¢ % 0.1t
Weighted average Common Units outstanding — diluted 92,62: 84,45!
Distributions declared per Common Unit $ 0428 $ 042t
Net income available for common unitholders:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 12,14 $ 10,41%
Income from discontinued operations available fimmon unitholders 384 2,46(
Net income available for common unitholders $ 12552t § 12,87

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges
Amortization of cash flow hedges
Total other comprehensive income/(loss)
Total comprehensive income
Less-comprehensive (income) attributable to nonodirty interests

Comprehensive income attributable to common urtisl

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013

13,57¢ $ 13,707
16E 39C
(1,409 28C
92¢ 78¢€
(313) 1,45¢
13,26¢ 15,16¢
(427) (209)
12,84; $ 14,96
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Capital
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Common Units

Noncontrolling

General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 14,50¢ $ 1,436,490 $ (2,61 21,3%¢ $ 1,469,79.
Issuances of Common Units, net of units redeemethfowithholdings 2 151 — — 15z
Redemptions of Common Units (0] 92 — — (93
Distributions paid on Common Units (399 (38,909 — — (39,300
Distributions paid on Preferred Units (6) (627) — — (627)
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfeiture 43 4,21¢ — — 4,26:
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates — — — (522 (522
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valoe
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (66) (6,504) — — (6,570
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssis consolidated
affiliates (4) (419 — 427 —
Comprehensive income:
Net income 13€ 13,44( — — 13,57¢
Other comprehensive loss — — (31) — (31)
Total comprehensive income 13,26¢
Balance at March 31, 2014 $ 1421¢ % 1,407,76! $ (2,927) 21,297 $ 1,440,35!
Common Units )
Noncontrolling
General Limited Accumulated Interests in
Partners’ Partners’ Other Consolidated Total Partners’
Capital Capital Comprehensive Loss Affiliates Capital
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 11,427  $ 1,131,48 % (12,62%) 4757 % 1,135,03
Issuances of Common Units, net of units redeemethfowithholdings 55¢ 55,24¢ — — 55,80¢
Distributions paid on Common Units (356) (35,319 — — (35,669)
Distributions paid on Preferred Units (6) (621) — — (627)
Share-based compensation expense, net of forfeiture 34 3,40¢ — — 3,44(
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in conidated affiliates — — — (265) (265)
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair valne
contributions/distributions from/to the GeneraltRar (229 (22,62%) — — (22,859
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteéssim consolidated
affiliates 2 (20)) — 20< —
Comprehensive income:
Net income 137 13,57( — — 13,70°
Other comprehensive income — — 1,45¢ — 1,45¢
Total comprehensive income 15,16t
Balance at March 31, 2013 $ 11,56: $ 1,144,94. $ (21,170 4691 $ 1,150,02

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of lease incentives and acquisitiolated intangible assets and liabilities
Share-based compensation expense
Allowance for losses on accounts and accrued $tréiite rents receivable
Accrued interest on mortgages and notes receivable
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of cash flow hedges
Amortization of mortgages and notes payable fduneadjustments
Impairments of real estate assets
Losses on debt extinguishment
Net gains on disposition of property
Equity in (earnings)/losses of unconsolidated iaffis
Changes in financing obligations
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifés
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued straight-line rents receivable
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiebil
Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Investments in acquired real estate and relatesigible assets, net of cash acquired
Investments in development in process
Investments in tenant improvements and deferresirigaosts
Investments in building improvements
Net proceeds from disposition of real estate assets
Distributions of capital from unconsolidated affties
Investments in mortgages and notes receivable
Repayments of mortgages and notes receivable
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates
Changes in restricted cash and other investingites
Net cash (used in) investing activities
Financing activities:
Distributions on Common Units
Redemptions of Common Units
Distributions on Preferred Units
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in coridated affiliates
Proceeds from the issuance of Common Units
Costs paid for the issuance of Common Units
Repurchase of units related to tax withholdings
Borrowings on revolving credit facility
Repayments of revolving credit facility
Repayments of mortgages and notes payable
Additions to deferred financina costs and otheafficina activities

Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013
13,57¢ 13,70
48,16¢ 42,29;

82 (136)
4,26: 3,44(
1,128 42¢

(118) —
652 94¢
92¢ 78¢
(809) =
— 1,12¢

= 164
(384) (1,249

29 (389)
(221) (108)
78¢ 1,13¢
71z (1,479
(5,226) (2,39)
(6,457) (5,789
(25,66 (10,159
31,44: 42,35;
= (88,33)
(27,23) (4,979
(24,78) (18,009
(13,007 (13,10)
= 14,97

23C 363
(108) =
16,60 —

= (429

4,04z 10,26
(44,25) (99,259
(39,300) (35,669
(93 —
(627) (627)
(522) (265)
1,31¢ 59,01¢
(14) (701)
(1,529 (2,519
96,10( 135,90
(36,800) (61,400)
(2,236) (37,219
(336) (1.240



Net cash provided by financing activities 15,96( 55,28¢

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent $ 3,14¢  $ (1,619

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Continued
(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent $ 3,14¢  $ (1,619
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the gherio 10,28: 13,86
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 13,43 $ 12,25:

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 25,05¢ $ 21,88

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing anéth&incing activities:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges $ (1,409 $ 28C
Changes in accrued capital expenditures 5,39¢ 5,15¢
Write-off of fully depreciated real estate assets 3,121 6,467
Write-off of fully amortized deferred financing afehsing costs 3,697 4,87:
Unrealized gains on marketable securities of noalified deferred compensation plan 5¢ 28¢
Adjustment of Redeemable Common Units to fair value 6,32¢ 22,44¢
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 16E 39C

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2014
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)
(Unaudited)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiing Policies
Description of Business

Highwoods Properties, Inc. (the “Company”) is dyfahtegrated real estate investment trust (“REIfHat provides leasing, managem
development, construction and other custonatated services for its properties and for thiadties. The Company conducts its activ
through Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership (t@pérating Partnership”). At March 31, 2014 , we edior had an interest 82.1 millior
rentable square feet of in-service office, indastand retail properties, 0.8 millientable square feet of office properties undeetigmmen
and approximately 600 acres of development land.

The Company is the sole general partner of the &jpgr Partnership. At March 31, 201the Company owned all of the Preferred L
and 89.7 million , or 96.8% , of the Common Unitstihe Operating Partnership. Limited partners olaa remaining 2.9 milliolCommor
Units. During the three months ended March 31, 20the Company redeemed 2,500 Common Units forthesms $0.1 millionin cash an
redeemed 4,417 Common Units for a like number afeiof Common Stock.

Common Stock Offerings

During the three months ended March 31, 2014 Cibmpany issued 23,5&hares of Common Stock under its equity sales aggpts ¢
an average gross sales price of $38.29 per shdreeaeived net proceeds, after sales commissié$g.® million .

Basis of Presentation

Our Consolidated Financial Statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States
America (“GAAP”). Our Consolidated Statements ofdme for the three months ended March 31, 20&8 retrospectively revised fr
previously reported amounts to reflect in discamdith operations the operations for those propestéssified as discontinued operations.

The Company's Consolidated Financial Statementsidecthe Operating Partnership, wholly owned subsies and those entities
which the Company has the controlling interest. Tgerating Partnership's Consolidated FinanciateStants include wholly own
subsidiaries and those entities in which the OpagadRartnership has the controlling interest. Atercompany transactions and accounts
been eliminated. At March 31, 2014 and DecembeR813, we had involvement with, but are not the primbeneficiary in, an entity th
we concluded to be a variable interest entity ($ete 2).

The unaudited interim consolidated financial stanta and accompanying unaudited consolidated fiabimformation, in the opinion
management, contain all adjustments (including mbmexcurring accruals) necessary for a fair predent of our financial position, results
operations and cash flows. We have omitted certatas and other information from the interim Coiaikd Financial Statements prese
in this Quarterly Report as permitted by SEC rwed regulations. These Consolidated Financial ®tts should be read in conjunc
with our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial stateméntaccordance with GAAP requires us to make edémand assumptions that af

the amounts reported in the Consolidated Fina&tatements and accompanying notes. Actual resulig cliffer from those estimates.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

1. Description of Business and Significant Accaiting Policies - Continued
Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Beginning with our Quarterly Report on Form @0for the three months ended March 31, 2015, we lvél required to reflect
discontinued operations for only those real estaset sales representing a strategic shift in tpesa(e.g. a disposal of a major geogra
area or a major line of business). Currently, e required to reflect all real estate asset satediscontinued operations, which reqt
reclassification of the earnings of the sold askets continuing operations for all periods presehnt Early adoption is permitted, but only
real estate asset sales that have not been privietlected as discontinued operations.

2. Mortgages and Notes Receivable

The following table sets forth our mortgages antésoeceivable:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
Seller financing (first mortgages) $ — 3 16,45«
Less allowance — —
— 16,45¢
Mortgage receivable 9,65¢ 9,43¢
Less allowance = =
9,65¢ 9,43t
Promissory notes 67C 822
Less allowance (300 (302)
37C 52(C
Mortgages and notes receivable, net $ 10,02¢  $ 26,40¢

During 2010, we provided seller financing in corgtion with twodisposition transactions. We accounted for thespaditions using tt
installment method, whereby a gain on dispositibproperty was deferred until the seller financings repaid. During the first quarter
2014, the $16.5 million of seller financing wasljulepaid and we recorded the $0.4 million gaird@position of property.

During 2012, we provided secured acquisition finagdo a third party. We also agreed to loan sinitd tparty $8.4 millionon a secure
basis to fund future infrastructure development.oAdMarch 31, 2014 , $0.4 milliohas been funded to the third party for infrastrce
development. We concluded this arrangement to batarest in a variable interest entity. Howevémnce we do not have the power to di
matters that most significantly impact the actestiof the entity, we do not qualify as the primaeneficiary. Accordingly, the entity is r
consolidated. Our risk of loss with respect to thisangement is limited to the carrying value of thortgage receivable and the fu
infrastructure development funding commitment.

We evaluate the ability to collect our mortgaged antes receivable by monitoring the leasing dtesisand/or market fundamentals
these assets. As of March 31, 2014 , our mortgagésotes receivable were not in default and there no other indicators of impairment.

The following table sets forth our notes receivalewance, which relates only to promissory notes:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Beginning notes receivable allowance $ 302 $ 182
Recoveries/write-offs/other 2 25E
Total notes receivable allowance $ 30C § 437
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

3. Investments in Affiliates
Unconsolidated Affiliates

We have equity interests of up to 50.086various joint ventures with unrelated third pestthat are accounted for using the ec
method of accounting because we have the abiligxécise significant influence over their opergtamd financial policies.

The following table sets forth the summarized inesstatements of our unconsolidated affiliates:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Income Statements:
Rental and other revenues $ 12,43 $ 23,51¢
Expenses:
Rental property and other expenses 6,217 11,20¢
Depreciation and amortization 3,48¢ 6,14¢
Impairments of real estate assets — 4,79(
Interest expense 2,211 4,73¢
Total expenses 11,917 26,88¢
Income/(loss) before disposition of properties 517 (3,36¢)
Gains on disposition of properties 1,94¢ 24
Net income/(loss) $ 2466 $ (3349
Our share of:
Depreciation and amortization $ 1031 $ 2,01
Impairments of real estate assets $ — $ 1,0
Interest expense $ 77€ $ 1,752
Gains on disposition of properties $ 95t % 421
Net income $ 1,158 $ 4
Our share of net income $ 1,158 % 4
Adjustments for management and other fees 16¢ 43z
Impairment of investment in unconsolidated affdiat (1,359 —
Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffis $ (29) ¢ 43¢

Board of Trade Investment Company ("Board of Trade")

During the first quarter of 2014, Board of Tradédsan office property to an unrelated third party §ross proceeds of $8.3 milli@mc
recorded a gain of $1.9 million . We expect to reeeaggregate net distributions of $4.7 millisnconnection with our investment in t
entity. As our cost basis is different from theibasflected at the entity level, we recorded aimgtairment charge on our investmeni$6t4
million . This charge represented the other-thanperary decline in the fair value below the cargyiralue of our investment.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

4. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities

The following table sets forth total intangible etssand acquisitiorelated below market lease liabilities, net of analated amortizatior

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Assets:
Deferred financing costs $ 17,32¢ % 17,36:
Less accumulated amortization (5,789 (5,204
11,54( 12,15¢
Deferred leasing costs (including lease incentare$ above market lease and in-place lease acquoisélated
intangible assets) 302,14: 297,06¢
Less accumulated amortization (94,85() (87,01¢)
207,29: 210,05:
Deferred financing and leasing costs, net $ 218,83: $ 222,21
Liabilities (in accounts payable, accrued expensesd other liabilities):
Acquisition-related below market lease liabilities $ 54,99¢ $ 55,32:
Less accumulated amortization (9,679 (8,47%)
$ 4532 $ 46,84¢

The following table sets forth amortization of in¢gble assets and below market lease liabilities:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Amortization of deferred financing costs $ 65z $ 94¢
Amortization of deferred leasing costs and acqoisitelated intangible assets (in depreciation amdrtization) $ 9,92t $ 8,07
Amortization of lease incentives (in rental andestrevenues) $ 351 % 37¢€
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assgn rental and other revenues) $ 1,11¢ $ 46¢€
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assg@n rental property and other expenses) $ 137 $ 137
Amortization of acquisition-related below markedde liabilities (in rental and other revenues) $ (1,529 $ (1.12)
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

4. Intangible Assets and Below Market Lease Lidlities - Continued

The following table sets forth scheduled future dimation of intangible assets and below markesédabilities:

Amortization of
Deferred Leasing

Costs and Amortization of Amortization of
Acquisition- Amortization of Acquisition- Acquisition-
Related Acquisition- Related Related Below
Intangible Assets Amortization of Related Intangible Assets  Market Lease
Amortization of (in Depreciation  Lease Incentives Intangible Assets (in Rental Liabilities (in
Deferred and (in Rental and (in Rental and Property and Rental and Other
Financing Costs Amortization) Other Revenues) Other Revenues) Other Expenses) Revenues)
April 1 through December 31, 2014 $ 2,10¢ % 29,55¢ $ 98: $ 3221 % 41¢ $ (4,479
2015 2,76 33,53 1,08: 3,61¢ 55¢ (5,719
2016 2,50( 27,95 91C 2,81( 558 (5,427
2017 2,20t 23,98t 84C 2,26¢ 55¢ (5,169
2018 1,08( 19,72¢ 737 1,42¢ 55¢ (5,016
Thereafter 88¢€ 44,66¢ 2,48 3,76¢ 1,08¢ (19,519
$ 11,54C $ 179,42: % 7,04C % 17,11 % 3,712  $ (45,32))
Weighted average remaining amortization _ ~
periods as of March 31, 2014 (in years) 4.t 6.7 8.2 6.€ 6.7 8.¢

5. Mortgages and Notes Payable

The following table sets forth our mortgages anttagayable:

March 31, December 31,

2014 2013
Secured indebtedness $ 485,52! % 488,66
Unsecured indebtedness 1,527,02! 1,467,63!

Total mortgages and notes payable $ 201255 $ 1,956,29

At March 31, 2014 our secured mortgage loans were collateralizecebl estate assets with an aggregate undeprediatddvalue ¢
$817.9 million .

Our $475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis scheduled to mature in January 2Gi8! includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $75.0 millioof borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for twditinal sixmonth periods. The interest rate at our currerditratings is LIBOR plus 11
basis points and the annual facility fee is 20 basints. There was $275.0 million and $409.0 omlbutstanding under our revolving cre
facility at March 31, 2014 and April 21, 2014 , pestively. At both March 31, 2014 and April 21, 201we had $0.1 milliorf outstandin
letters of credit, which reduces the availabilityaur revolving credit facility. As a result, thaused capacity of our revolving credit facility
March 31, 2014 and April 21, 2014 was $199.9 milland $65.9 million , respectively.

We are currently in compliance with financial coaats and other requirements with respect to ousaatated debt.
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

6. Derivative Financial Instruments

Our interest rate swaps have been designated asraraking accounted for as cash flow hedges widmges in fair value recordec
other comprehensive income each reporting periadgain or loss was recognized related to hedgdeictéfeness or to amounts exclu
from effectiveness testing on our cash flow hedfjgtng the three months ended March 31, 200 have no collateral requirements rel

to our interest rate swaps.

Amounts reported in accumulated other compreheriss® ("AOCL") related to derivatives will be resified to interest expense
interest payments are made on our variable-rate @ebing the period from April 1, 2014 through Mhr31, 2015, we estimate ths3.4

million will be reclassified to interest expense.

The following table sets forth the gross fair vatdeur derivatives:

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013
Derivatives:
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in prégaxpenses and other assets:
Interest rate swaps $ — 3 301
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges in acotsipayable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
Interest rate swaps $ 76: % 51C

The following table sets forth the effect of ouslkedlow hedges on AOCL and interest expense:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Derivatives Designated as Cash Flow Hedges:
Amount of unrealized gains/(losses) recognized in@CL on derivatives (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ (1,409 $ 28C
Amount of losses reclassified out of AOCL into comactual interest expense (effective portion):
Interest rate swaps $ 92¢ § 78¢
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

7. Noncontrolling Interests
Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Affiliates

At March 31, 2014 , our noncontrolling interestsconsolidated affiliates relates to our joint veetpartner's 50.0%nterest in offici
properties in Richmond, VA. Our joint venture partiis an unrelated third party.

Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp

The following table sets forth the Company's nonicgling interests in the Operating Partnership:

Three Months Ended March 31,

2014 2013

Beginning noncontrolling interests in the Operatitagtnership $ 106,48( $ 124,86¢
Adjustment of noncontrolling interests in the Opiexg Partnership to fair value 7,43¢ 23,80:
Conversions of Common Units to Common Stock (162) (357)
Redemptions of Common Units (93 —

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interdstshe Operating Partnership 39€ 581
Distributions to noncontrolling interests in the&ating Partnership (1,249 (1,584
Total noncontrolling interests in the OperatingtRarship $ 112,80t $ 147,31

The following table sets forth net income availatdecommon stockholders and transfers from the @amg's noncontrolling interests
the Operating Partnership:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Net income available for common stockholders $ 12,12¢ $ 12,34¢
Increase in additional paid in capital from coni@ns of Common Units to Common Stock 16z 351
Change from net income available for common stoltlérs and transfers from noncontrolling interests $ 12,29C § 12,70
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

8. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument
The following summarizes the three levels of inghtst we use to measure fair value.
Level 1. Quoted prices in active markets for identicabtssr liabilities.

Our Level 1 assets include investments in marketabturities that we use to pay benefits undenonowualified deferred compensat
plan and an investment in an unconsolidated affili@corded at fair value on a nmeurring basis as a result of our quarterly intpain
analysis. The investment is primarily comprisedinflistributed cash remaining after the sale o$dig real estate asset. Our Level 1 liak
is our nongqualified deferred compensation obligation. The @any's Level 1 noncontrolling interests in the @gpieg Partnership relate
the ownership of Common Units by various individuahd entities other than the Company.

Level 2.0bservable inputs other than Level 1 prices, ssafuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggoted prices in markets that
not active; or other inputs that are observableaor be corroborated by observable market dataufostantially the full term of the relat
assets or liabilities.

Our Level 2 assets include the fair value of cartdiour mortgages and notes receivable and cesfainr interest rate swaps. Our Le
2 liabilities include the fair value of our mortgegand notes payable and the remainder of ouesiteste swaps.

The fair value of mortgages and notes receivabld mortgages and notes payable is estimated bynit@mie approach utilizit
contractual cash flows and mark®tsed interest rates to approximate the pricevioatd be paid in an orderly transaction betweenkei
participants. The fair value of interest rate swispdetermined using the market standard methogiaddgnetting the discounted future fix
cash receipts and the discounted expected varizddh payments. The variable cash payments of gtteade swaps are based on
expectation of future LIBOR interest rates (forwanakves) derived from observed market LIBOR intemase curves. In addition, cre
valuation adjustments are incorporated in thevfalues to account for potential nonperformance, tisk were concluded to not be signific
inputs to the calculation for the periods presented

Level 3. Unobservable inputs that are supported by littlen@market activity and that are significant to fag value of the assets
liabilities.

Our Level 3 assets include (1) certain of our meges and notes receivable, which were estimatethdyncome approach utilizi
internal cash flow projections and market intenegés to estimate the price that would be paidniroalerly transaction between mal
participants, (2) our tax increment financing bowmthjch is not routinely traded but whose fair valsaletermined by the income appra
utilizing contractual cash flows and marletsed interest rates to estimate the projectedngtiten value based on quoted bid/ask price
similar unrated municipal bonds, and (3) any resdate assets recorded at fair value on areouorring basis as a result of our quart
impairment analysis, which were valued using thiengeof definitive sales contracts or the sales amspn approach and substantiated
internal cash flow projections.

Our Level 3 liabilities include the fair value ofiocontingent consideration to acquire real estatets and financing obligations, wt
were estimated by the income approach to approgirte price that would be paid in an orderly tratisa between market participar
utilizing: (1) contractual cash flows; (2) markmsed interest rates; and (3) a number of othemgsttons including demand for spe
competition for customers, changes in market reatals, costs of operation and expected ownergripgs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

8. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth our assets and litds and the Company's noncontrolling interestshie Operating Partnership that
measured at fair value within the fair value hiehgr

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets for Significant
Identical Assets or Significant Unobservable
Total Liabilities Observable Inputs Inputs

Fair Value at March 31, 2014:
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 10,037 $ — % 37C % 9,667
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,721 3,721 — —
Impaired investment in unconsolidated affiliate 4,66¢ 4,66¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaher assets) 13,56¢ — — 13,56¢

Total Assets $ 31,99 $ 8,38¢ $ 37C  $ 23,23t
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 112,80¢ $ 112,80¢ $ — $ —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 2,101,89 $ —  $ 2,101,899 $ —
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrxehses and other liabilities) 768 — 763 —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationg@tounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,721 3,721 — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 22,20 — — 22,20

Total Liabilities $ 212858 $ 3,721 $ 2,102,66. $ 22,20:
Fair Value at December 31, 2013:
Assets:
Mortgages and notes receivable, at fair vadye $ 26,48 $ — % 17,02¢ $ 9,45¢
Interest rate swaps (in prepaid expenses and atisets) 301 — 301 —
Marketable securities of non-qualified deferred pemsation plan (in prepaid

expenses and other assets) 3,99¢ 3,99¢ — —
Tax increment financing bond (in prepaid expensesaiher assets) 13,40: — — 13,40:

Total Assets $ 44,188 3 3,99 $ 17,33 $ 22,85¢
Noncontrolling Interests in the Operating Partnershp $ 106,48( $ 106,48( $ — $ —
Liabilities:
Mortgages and notes payable, at fair vaiye $ 2,037,38 $ — $ 2,037,388 % =
Interest rate swaps (in accounts payable, accrygehses and other liabilities) 51C — 51C —
Non-qualified deferred compensation obligationgatounts payable, accrued

expenses and other liabilities) 3,99¢ 3,99¢ — —
Financing obligations, at fair valyg 22,47¢ — — 22,47¢

Total Liabilities $ 2,064,360 $ 399 $ 2,037,890 $ 22,47¢

(1) Amounts recorded at historical cost on oanéblidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2014 acdrbleer 31, 2013 .
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
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8. Disclosure About Fair Value of Financial Instrument - Continued

The following table sets forth the changes in oavél 3 asset and liability, which are recordedaat falue on our Consolidated Bala
Sheets:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Asset:

Tax Increment Financing Bond:

Beginning balance $ 13,40¢ $ 14,49¢
Principal repayment — (562)
Unrealized gains (in AOCL) 16t 39C

Ending balance $ 13,56¢ $ 14,32

Liability:

Contingent Consideration to Acquire Real Estate Asss:

Beginning balance $ — 562
Recognized gains (in general and administrativerges) — (18¢)

Ending balance $ — 8 37¢

During 2007, we acquired a tax increment finandimgd associated with a parking garage developedsbyrhis bond amortizes
maturity in 2020 . The estimated fair value at Madd, 2014 was $0.9 milliobelow the outstanding principal due on the bonthéfdiscour
rate used to fair value this bond was 100 basistpdiigher or lower, the fair value of the bond Wdobave been $0.4 million lower &0.4
million higher, respectively, as of March 31, 201We intend to hold this bond and have concluded e will not be required to sell tl
bond before recovery of the bond principal. Paynedrihe principal and interest for the bond is gudeed by us. We have recorded no ¢
losses related to the bond during the three maarided March 31, 2014 and 201Bhere is no legal right of offset with the liati| which we
report as a financing obligation, related to this increment financing bond.

The following table sets forth quantitative infortioa about the unobservable input of our Level &aswhich is recorded at fair value
our Consolidated Balance Sheets:

Valuation Unobservable Rate/
Technique Input Percentage
Asset:
Tax increment financing bond Income approach Discount rate 9.7%

9. ShareBased Payment

During the three months ended March 31, 2014 COtvapany granted 166,0&tock options with an exercise price equal to tbosiag
market price of a share of Common Stock on the daggant. The fair value of each option is estiedabn the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model, which resulted in eighted average grant date fair value per sha@ @9 . During thehree months end
March 31, 2014 , the Company also granted 79,0&6eslof time-based restricted stock and 65,77@stadrtotal returipased restricted sta
with weighted average grant date fair values paresbf $37.55 and $35.24 , respectively. We recbstharebased compensation expens
$4.3 million and $3.4 million during the three miasitended March 31, 2014 and 2013 , respectivelyWaich 31, 2014 , there w&6.2
million of total unrecognized shalmsed compensation costs, which will be recognized a weighted average remaining contractual tef
2.7 years.

25




Table of Contents

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

10. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los

The following table sets forth the components of O

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Tax increment financing bond:
Beginning balance $ (1,029 $ (1.899
Unrealized gains on tax increment financing bond 16E 39C
Ending balance (8649 (1,509
Cash flow hedges:
Beginning balance (1,582 (20,730
Unrealized gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges (1,404 28C
Amortization of cash flow hedges 92¢ 78¢
Ending balance (2,05¢) (9,662
Total accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (292) $ (11,179

(1) Amounts reclassified out of AOCL into cormtingal interest expense.
11. Discontinued Operation:

The following table sets forth our operations diésd as discontinued operations:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013

Rental and other revenues $ — $ 6,99¢
Operating expenses:

Rental property and other expenses — 2,45(

Depreciation and amortization — 2,204

Total operating expenses — 4,65¢

Income from discontinued operations — 2,34¢

Impairments of real estate assets — (2,128

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operations 384 1,24¢

Total discontinued operations $ 384 § 2,46(
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

12. Earnings Per Share and Per Un|

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share of the Company:

Three Months Ended March

31,
2014 2013
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,190 $ 11,30(
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim the Operating Partnership from continuingrapens (386) (472)
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (423) (209)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627)
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders 11,75¢ 9,99¢
Income from discontinued operations 384 2,46(
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeim the Operating Partnership from discontinupelrations (12 (209
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 372 2,351
Net income available for common stockholders $ 12,12¢ $ 12,34¢
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shares 89,96¢ 81,02¢
Earnings per Common Share - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 01t % 0.12
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders — 0.0z
Net income available for common stockholders $ 01: $ 0.1t
Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,190 $ 11,30(
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis consolidated affiliates from continuing operas (423) (209)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627)
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders before net (income) attributableancontrolling interests in tt
Operating Partnership 12,14: 10,47(
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon stockholders 384 2,46(

Net income available for common stockholders befm(income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeein the Operating Partnersh$ ~ 12,52¢  $  12,93(

Denominator:

Denominator for basic earnings per Common Shareighted average shares 89,96¢ 81,02¢
Add:

Stock options using the treasury method 124 10¢€
Noncontrolling interests Common Units 2,94( 3,72¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Shaadjusted weighted average shares and assumedsiomege) (2) 93,03( 84,86

Earnings per Common Share - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom stockholders $ 0.1: $ 0.12

Income from discontinued operations available fimmon stockholders — 0.0
$ 0.1z $ 0.1t

Net income available for common stockholders

(1) There were 0.3 million and 0.5 million options datwling during the three months ended March 314 20 2013 respectively, that were not incluc
in the computation of diluted earnings per shaabse the impact of including such options woulaive-dilutive.

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock where divitteon such restricted stock are riorfeitable



27




Table of Contents
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

12. Earnings Per Share and Per Unit Continued

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per unit of the Operafagnership:

Three Months Ended March

31,
2014 2013
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,190 $ 11,247
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteeeis consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (423) (203)
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627)
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 12,14: 10,417
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 384 2,46(
Net income available for common unitholders $ 1252¢ $ 12,87"
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit ighted average units 92,497 84,34¢
Earnings per Common Unit - basic:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 01: % 0.1z
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 0.01 0.0:
Net income available for common unitholders $ 01¢ % 0.1¢
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations $ 13,190 $ 11,247
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling integeim consolidated affiliates from continuing ogeras (423) (209)
Distributions on Preferred Units (627) (627)
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders 12,14: 10,417
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 384 2,46(
Net income available for common unitholders $ 1252« $ 12871
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings per Common Unit ighted average units 92,497 84,34¢
Add:
Stock options using the treasury method 124 10¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per Common Uratijusted weighted average units and assumed comva(s (2) 92,62! 84,45!
Earnings per Common Unit - diluted:
Income from continuing operations available for coom unitholders $ 01t $ 0.12
Income from discontinued operations available fanmon unitholders 0.01 0.0z
Net income available for common unitholders $ 014/ % 0.1¢

(1) There were 0.3 million and 0.5 million optiomststanding during the three months ended Margl2@14 and 2013respectively, that were not incluc
in the computation of diluted earnings per unitéhese the impact of including such options wouldbg-dilutive.

(2) Includes all unvested restricted stock whévadnds on such restricted stock are riorfeitable
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HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

13. Segment Informatior
The following tables summarize the rental and otkeenues and net operating income, the primanysing propertylevel performanc

metric used by our chief operating decision makrich is defined as rental and other revenuesriessl property and other expenses
each of our reportable segments:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Rental and Other Revenues(1)

Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 22977 $ 17,16}
Greenville, SC 841 851
Kansas City, MO 4,097 3,96¢
Memphis, TN 9,83t 9,38(
Nashville, TN 19,60¢ 14,07(
Orlando, FL 8,92( 2,221
Piedmont Triad, NC 6,45( 6,37
Pittsburgh, PA 13,757 13,68¢
Raleigh, NC 21,49: 20,66(
Richmond, VA 11,74 11,77
Tampa, FL 16,62 17,43«
Total Office Segment 136,34 117,58¢

Industrial:

Atlanta, GA 204 20z
Piedmont Triad, NC 2,68¢ 3,122
Total Industrial Segment 2,892 3,32¢

Retail:
Kansas City, MO 9,21¢ 9,462
Total Retail Segment 9,21¢ 9,46°
Total Rental and Other Revenues $ 148450 § 130,37
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

13. Segment Information - Continued

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013
Net Operating Income: (1)
Office:
Atlanta, GA $ 13,697 $ 10,89
Greenville, SC 47E 49€
Kansas City, MO 2,60t 2,562
Memphis, TN 5,607 5,62¢
Nashville, TN 13,15: 9,68t
Orlando, FL 5,37¢ 1,07¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 3,99¢ 4,09¢
Pittsburgh, PA 7,19: 7,41¢
Raleigh, NC 15,03: 14,62«
Richmond, VA 7,67¢ 8,11z
Tampa, FL 10,03t 11,21¢
Total Office Segment 84,841 75,81¢
Industrial:
Atlanta, GA 12z 11¢
Piedmont Triad, NC 1,861 2,24k
Total Industrial Segment 1,98¢ 2,36¢
Retail:
Kansas City, MO 5,26t 5,621
Total Retail Segment 5,26¢ 5,621
Corporate and other (39 (18)
Total Net Operating Income 92,06: 83,78:
Reconciliation to income from continuing operationsbefore activity in unconsolidated affiliates:
Depreciation and amortization (48,16% (40,08¢)
General and administrative expenses (20,719 (20,589
Interest expense (21,367) (23,86%)
Other income 1,39¢ 1,61¢
Income from continuing operations before activity h unconsolidated affiliates $ 1322 § 10,86

(1) Net of discontinued operatiol

30




Table of Contents
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HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
(tabular dollar amounts in thousands, except per sfre and per unit data)

14. Subsequent Event

On April 1, 2014, we prepaid without penalty thenegning $123.7 milliorbalance on a secured mortgage loan with an effeatieres
rate of 3.11% that was originally scheduled to matno July 2014 .

In early April 2014, the Company issued 50,293 shaf Common Stock at an average gross salesqfrik®8.38per share and receiv
net proceeds, after sales commissions, of $1.%omill
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is a fully integrated REIT that progideasing, management, development, constructiahcdiner customerelate(
services for its properties and for third parti#ge Company conducts its activities through the r@jieg Partnership. The Operat
Partnership is managed by the Company, its solergepartner. At March 31, 2014 , we owned or hadrgerest in 32.1 milliomentabl
square feet of in-service office, industrial anthileproperties, 0.8 milliorrentable square feet of office properties underetimmment an
approximately 60@cres of development land. We are based in Ralbigith Carolina, and our properties and developrterd are located
Florida, Georgia, Missouri, North Carolina, Penmaylia, South Carolina, Tennessee and Virginia. #althl information about us can
found on our website atww.highwoods.com Information on our website is not part of thisa@erly Report.

You should read the following discussion and analys conjunction with the accompanying Consolidaténancial Statements ¢
related notes contained elsewhere in this Quarkelyort.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Some of the information in this Quarterly Reportymeontain forwardeoking statements. Such statements include, iticpédar,
statements about our plans, strategies and praspader this section. You can identify forward-loak statements by our use of forward-
looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expeét;anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue’dr other similar words. Although we believe that
plans, intentions and expectations reflected isumggested by such forwaloleking statements are reasonable, we cannot agsuréhat ou
plans, intentions or expectations will be achievafthen considering such forwaldeking statements, you should keep in mind thiofdhg
important factors that could cause our actual tedaldiffer materially from those contained in doyward-looking statement:

» the financial condition of our customers could derate

* we may not be able to lease or release secondajmmespace, defined as previously occupied sgatebecomes available for lee
quickly or on as favorable terms as old leases;

e we may not be able to lease our newly constructéldibgs as quickly or on as favorable terms agioailly anticipatec

e« we may not be able to complete development, aderisireinvestment, disposition or joint venturejpcts as quickly or on
favorable terms as anticipated,;

» development activity by our competitors in our &Rrig markets could result in an excessive supplpftite properties relative
customer demand,;

e our markets may suffer declines in economic grc
e unanticipated increases in interest rates coullck@se our debt service co
e unanticipated increases in operating expenses cagdtively impact our operating rest

* we may not be able to meet our liquidity requireteesr obtain capital on favorable terms to fund warking capital needs a
growth initiatives or repay or refinance outstatmdiebt upon maturity; and

» the Company could lose key executive offic
This list of risks and uncertainties, however, @ imtended to be exhaustive. You should also revthe other cautionary statements
make in “Business — Risk Factors” set forth in 8063 Annual Report on Form }-Given these uncertainties, you should not plagut

reliance on forward-looking statements. We underta@ obligation to publicly release the resultsany revisions to these forwaloeking
statements to reflect any future events or circamsts or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipateshts.
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Executive Summary

Our Strategic Plan focuses on:
» owning highgquality, differentiated real estate assets in #eikfill business districts in our core mark

» improving the operating results of our existinggedies through concentrated leasing, asset mareagenost control and custor
service efforts;

» developing and acquiring office properties in kefjlli business districts that improve the overalktjty of our portfolio and gener:
attractive returns over the long-term for our stuulers;

» disposing of properties no longer considered todre assets primarily due to location, age, qualitgt overall strategic fit; a
* maintaining a conservative and flexible balanceeskdth ample liquidity to meet our funding needsl growth prospect

While we own and operate a limited number of indakand retail properties, our operating resuéipehd heavily on successfully leas
and operating our office properties. Economic gtoamd employment levels in our core markets arevahaontinue to be important factc
in predicting our future operating results.

The key components affecting our rental and otbeemues are average occupancy, rental rates,emmstary income, new developme
placed in service, acquisitions and dispositiongerAge occupancy generally increases during timh@s@roving economic growth, as ¢
ability to lease space outpaces vacancies thatr agpmn the expirations of existing leases. Averagmupancy generally declines during tii
of slower economic growth, when new vacancies teEndutpace our ability to lease space. Asset aitimuis, dispositions and ne
developments placed in service directly impact remtal revenues and could impact our average occypaepending upon the occupa
rate of the properties that are acquired, soldaegal in service. A further indicator of the predhility of future revenues is the expected i
expirations of our portfolio. As a result, in adalit to seeking to increase our average occupandgasyng current vacant space, we also
concentrate our leasing efforts on renewing oustad leases prior to expiration. For more inforioratregarding our lease expirations,
"Properties - Lease Expirations” in our 2013 AnrRRaport. Our occupancy declined from 89.9% at Ddxr31, 2013 to 89.2% Mtarch 31
2014primarily due to the scheduled expiration of a 90,8quare foot customer in Tampa, FL and 145,00@rsgfeet vacated by a custol
in Nashville, TN. We recently completed a 203,0§0ase foot build-tesuit for the customer in Nashville, TN. In light lebses signed to di
and our forecasted leasing activity for the remainof 2014, we expect average occupancy to be gjppately 90.5%over the last thre
quarters of 2014 and year-end 2014 occupancy 811896 to 92.5%.

Whether or not our rental revenue tracks averagepancy proportionally depends upon whether rentieusigned new and rene
leases are higher or lower than the rents unddrieggeases. Annualized rental revenues from sggeneration leases expiring during
particular year are generally less than 15% oftotal annual rental revenues. The following tal#és forth information regarding secc
generation leases signed during the first quaté¥0d4 (we define second generation leases as leasemesithcustomers and renewals
existing customers in space that has been previastupied under our ownership and leases withesi vacant space in acqui
buildings):

Office Industrial Retail
New Renewal New Renewal New Renewal
Leased space (in rentable square feet) 376,90:¢ 781,24: 26,02( 156,98: 19,02¢ 8,37z
Rentable square foot weighted average term (insyear 6.4 5.1 5.C 8.€ 10.1 1.8
Base rents (per rentable square font) $ 2397 $ 228: $ 6.5 $ 480 % 175¢ $ 43.9¢
Rent concessions (per rentable square fapt) (1.0¢) (0.4%) (0.42) (0.19) — (0.09)
GAAP rents (per rentable square foa) $ 22.8¢ $ 22.3¢  $ 6.1z $ 468 % 175 % 43.8¢
Tenant improvements (per rentable square fapt) $ 29z § 18z ¢ 121 ¢ 0.0¢ $ 6.2z $ —
Leasing commissions (per rentable square fapt) $ 0.9t § 0.8C $ 0.1¢ § — 051 § 0.52

(1) Weighted average per rentable square foot on amahbasis over the lease te
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Compared to previous leases in the same spacaslatombined GAAP rents for new and renewal leaggsed in the first quarter we
$22.54 per rentable square foot, or 7.8% higher pffice leases, $4.89 per rentable square fao1,2d@% higher, for industrial leases a
$25.58 per rentable square foot, or 1.0% lower rdtail leases.

We strive to maintain a diverse, stable and cregtifay customer base. We have an internal guidelimereby customers that account
more than 3% of our revenues are periodically regikwith the Company's Board of Directors. No costo currently accounts for more ti
2% of our revenues other than the Federal Goverhimwhich accounted for less than 10.@%our revenues on an annualized basis,
March 31, 2014 .

Our expenses primarily consist of rental propentpemses, depreciation and amortization, general ahdinistrative expenses ¢
interest expense. From time to time, expensesiatdode impairments of real estate assets. Rentglgoty expenses are expenses asso!
with our ownership and operation of rental progartand include expenses that vary somewhat propatély to occupancy levels, suct
janitorial services and utilities, and expenses ttanot vary based on occupancy, such as propeaxss and insurance. Depreciation
amortization is a noesash expense associated with the ownership oprepkrty and generally remains relatively consiséaith year, unle
we buy, place in service or sell assets, since epgatiate our properties and related building @ndrt improvement assets on a straliyjia-
basis over fixed lives. General and administraéi¥penses consist primarily of management and erapleglaries and other personnel ¢
corporate overhead and short and long-term incemiwnpensation.

We intend to maintain a conservative and flexibddahce sheet that allows us to capitalize on falerdevelopment and acquisit
opportunities as they arise. We anticipate comnmgnap to $150 million of new development in 2018uch projects would likely not
placed in service until 2015 or beyond. We alsacgrdte acquiring up to $300 million of new propestand selling up to $175 millioof
non-core properties in 2014We generally seek to acquire and develop askatsrhprove the average quality of our overall fmdic anc
deliver consistent and sustainable value for oacldiolders over the longerm. Whether or not an asset acquisition or neweld@men
results in higher per share net income or fundmfaperations ("FFO") in any given period dependsrup number of factors, includi
whether the net operating income for any such peexceeds the actual cost of capital used to fimahe acquisition. Forwardoking
information regarding 2014éperating performance contained below under "Resoiit Operations” excludes the impact of any po#d
acquisitions or dispositions.

Results of Operations
Three Months Ended March 31, 2014 and 2013
Rental and Other Revenues

Rental and other revenues from continuing operatisare $18.1 million , or 13.9% , higher in thesfiquarter of 2014s compared
2013 primarily due to recent acquisitions and developi@operties placed in service, which accounted$®®.3 million of the increas
partly offset by lower same property revenues of $tillion. Same property rental and other reverwere lower primarily due to decreas
in average occupancy to 89.6% in the first quasfe2014 from 91.1% in the first quarter of 2013aasesult of large customer mowets ir
2013 in Tampa, FL and Atlanta, GA and the firsttera2014 movesuts discussed above, partly offset by higher oesbvery income |
2014. We expect rental and other revenues for éngainder of 2014 to increase over 2@iBnarily due to the full year contribution
acquisitions closed and development propertieseplét service in 2013 and higher same propertymase resulting from increasing aver
occupancy, higher cost recovery income and higheragie GAAP rents per rentable square foot.

Operating Expenses

Rental property and other expenses were $9.8 millir 21.0% , higher in the first quarter of 2Gicompared to 204&imarily due t
recent acquisitions and development propertieseglac service, which accounted for $7.8 milliontloé increase, and higher same prog
operating expenses of $2.6 million. Same propgubrating expenses were higher primarily due todvighilities and snow removal costs i
result of harsher than normal winter conditions. &¥pect rental property and other expenses forahminder of 2014 to increase 0a&1:
primarily due to the full year contribution of agsjtions closed and development properties placedervice in 2013 and higher se
property operating expenses resulting from highiéities and property taxes, partly offset by lowepairs and maintenance.

Operating margin, defined as rental and other neggress rental property and other expenses exgressa percentage of rental
other revenues, was lower at 62.0% for the firsrtgr of 2014 as compared to 64.3% for the firsirgpr of 2013 We expect operatil
margin for the remainder of 2014 to increase shjgtwer 2013 .
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Depreciation and amortization was $8.1 million 26r1% , higher in the first quarter of 2014 as paned to 201®rimarily due to rece|
acquisitions. We expect depreciation and amortimafor the remainder of 2014 to increase over 2pfitharily due to the full yei
contribution of acquisitions closed in 2013.

General and administrative expenses were relativebhanged in the first quarter of 2014 as comp#ye2D13primarily due to highe
incentive compensation and compamigle base salaries, offset by lower acquisitiontsand income taxes. We expect general
administrative expenses for the remainder of 20@ldecrease over 20J8imarily due to lower incentive compensation anduasition cost:
partly offset by higher companyide base salaries. Further, first quarter genenal administrative expenses are typically highantir
subsequent quarters due to higher ltetga equity incentive compensation recognized fatain employees who meet the age and se
eligibility requirements under our retirement planngterm equity incentive compensation awards are alfyicsssued during the first quar
of each year.

I nterest Expense

Interest expense was $2.5 million , or 10.5% , lowmethe first quarter of 2014 as compared to 2pfitarily due to lower avera
interest rates, partly offset by higher averaget detlances. We expect interest expense for the inel@aof 2014 to decrease ovedl:
primarily due to lower average interest rates agtiér capitalized interest, partly offset by high&erage debt balances.

Other Income

Other income was $0.2 million , or 13.6% , lowethe first quarter of 2014 as compared to 2pditharily due to the repayments in
first quarter of 2014 of $16.5 million of mortgageseivable, which consisted of seller financingyided in connection with 2010 disposit
transactions. This decrease in other income watypaffset by a loss on debt extinguishment in fingt quarter of 2013. We expect ot
income for the remainder of 2014 to decrease oO&B2s a result of the repayments of mortgages$viadde in the first quarter of 2014.

Equity in Earnings/(Losses) of Unconsolidated Affiliates

Equity in earnings/(losses) of unconsolidated iaffls was $0.5 million lower in the first quartér2®14 as compared to 20p8imarily
due to a net impairment of our investment in Boafrd'rade Investment Company in the first quarte2014 and the previously disclo:
acquisitions of certain joint venture interests aasbets in the third quarter of 2013. Partly offisgtthese impacts was our share
impairments of real estate assets in a joint venituthe first quarter of 2013. We expect equitgamnings of unconsolidated affiliates for
remainder of 2014 to decrease over 2013 primatiby tb the reduction of our overall joint venturggatments in 2013 and 2014.

I mpairments of Real Estate Assetsin Discontinued Operations

We recorded impairments of real estate assets .df @illion on seven industrial properties in AtlanGA in the first quarter of 201
These impairments were due to a change in the a&sbumming of future dispositions and leasing assiongs. We recorded no st
impairments in the first quarter of 2014.
Net Gains on Disposition of Discontinued Operations

Net gains on disposition of discontinued operatimese $0.9 million lower in the first quarter of 2ZDas compared to 20IRie to ni

disposition activity in 2014 and the recognitionaofieferred gain in 2014 on a 2010 dispositions@ation that was accounted for using
installment method.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our goal is to maintain a conservative and flexiéance sheet with access to multiple sourcesbf @nd equity capital and suffici
availability under our revolving credit facility. 8/generally use rents received from customers d four operating expenses, recur
capital expenditures and distributions. To fundpanty acquisitions, development activity or builglinenovations and repay debt u
maturity, we may use current cash balances, ssditgsobtain new debt and/or issue equity. Our deherally consists of unsecured (
securities, unsecured bank term loans, mortgageashkebborrowings under our unsecured revolvingitfedility.

Statements of Cash Flows

We report and analyze our cash flows based on tipgractivities, investing activities and financiagtivities. The following table s¢
forth the changes in the Company’s cash flows (Bausands):

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013 Change
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities $ 31,38« $ 42,11¢ $ (10,73
Net Cash (Used In) Investing Activities (44,257 (99,259 55,00:
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities 16,02¢ 55,52: (39,499
Total Cash Flows $ 316 $ (1.61) $ 4,77

In calculating net cash related to operating aibtisj depreciation and amortization, which are oash expenses, are added back t
income. As a result, we have historically generagqubsitive amount of cash from operating actisitierom period to period, cash flow fr
operations depends primarily upon changes in otirim@me, as discussed more fully above under “Resaf Operations,’changes i
receivables and payables, and net additions oredses in our overall portfolio, which affect thecamt of depreciation and amortizat
expense.

Net cash related to investing activities generadlates to capitalized costs incurred for leasing major building improvements and
acquisition, development, disposition and joint tuea capital activity. During periods of signifidanet acquisition and/or developm
activity, our cash used in such investing actigitiéll generally exceed cash provided by investtjvities, which typically consists of ce
received upon the sale of properties and distidmstiof capital from our joint ventures.

Net cash related to financing activities generadlfates to distributions, incurrence and repayneémtebt, and issuances, repurchass
redemptions of Common Stock, Common Units and edeStock. As discussed previously, we use afsigmit amount of our cash to fu
distributions. Whether or not we have increasdbénoutstanding balances of debt during a perigetags generally upon the net effect of
acquisition, disposition, development and joint tue@ activity. We generally use our revolving ctefdicility for daily working capite
purposes, which means that during any given peiliodyrder to minimize interest expense, we may mcaignificant repayments a
borrowings under our revolving credit facility.

The decrease in net cash provided by operatingitesi in the first quarter of 2014 as compare@@d@3was primarily due to higher ce
paid for operating expenses in 2014, partly offsehigher net cash from the operations of receatlyuired properties. We expect net «
provided by operating activities for the remaindé2014 to be higher as compared to 2013 due tdulhgear impact of properties acquil
in 2013 and higher cash flows from leases sign&Dik8 and prior years as free rent periods expire.

The decrease in net cash used in investing aetviti the first quarter of 2014 as compared to 2048 primarily due to lower acquisiti
activity and higher repayments of mortgages andswatceivable in 2014, partly offset by higher demement activity and lower net proce:
from dispositions of real estate assets in 2014. e#fgect net cash used in investing activities fa temainder of 2014 to be lower
compared to 2013 due to our plans to acquire $lildmto $300 million of office buildings and comence development of $75 million
$150 million of office buildings. Additionally, asf March 31, 2014, we have $135.3 million left tendél of our previouslgnnounce
development activity. We expect these uses of éashvesting activities will be partly offset byl80 million to $175 million of norcore
dispositions and additional distributions of calitam unconsolidated affiliates in 2014.
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The decrease in net cash provided by financingities in the first quarter of 2014 as compare®@3was primarily due to high
proceeds from the issuance of Common Stock in 2pa8ly offset by higher net debt borrowings in 20Assuming the net effect of ¢
acquisition, disposition, development and joint tuea activity in the remainder of 2014 results miacrease in our assets, we would ex
outstanding debt balances to increase. Howeveusecwe plan to continue to maintain a flexible andservative balance sheet v
mortgages and notes payable and outstanding prdfetock representing around 40% to 45% of the predéated book value of our ass
we would also expect higher outstanding balancé&soofimon Stock in such event.

Capitalization

The following table sets forth the Company’s cdjzitdion (in thousands, except per share amounts):

March 31, December 31,
2014 2013

Mortgages and notes payable, at recorded book value $ 2,01255 $ 1,956,29
Financing obligations $ 26,44: $ 26,66¢
Preferred Stock, at liquidation value $ 29,077 $ 29,077
Common Stock outstanding 90,06: 89,92
Common Units outstanding (not owned by the Company) 2,937 2,94¢
Per share stock price at period end $ 3841 $ 36.17
Market value of Common Stock and Common Units $ 3,572,090 $ 3,358,92
Total capitalization $ 5,640,166 $ 5,370,96

At March 31, 2014 , our mortgages and notes payaiteoutstanding preferred stock represented 3&28&tr total capitalization ai
42.2% of the undepreciated book value of our assets

Our mortgages and notes payable as of March 314 26hsisted of $485.5 millionf secured indebtedness with a weighted awvt
interest rate of 4.98% and $1,527.0 million of wsed indebtedness with a weighted average intesst of 3.95%. The secure
indebtedness was collateralized by real estatésasith an aggregate undepreciated book value 57 $8million .

Current and Future Cash Needs

Rental and other revenues are our principal soofréends to meet our short-term liquidity requirertee Other sources of funds for short-
term liquidity needs include available working dapiand borrowings under our existing revolvingditdacility. Our shortterm liquidity
requirements primarily consist of operating expsnseterest and principal amortization on our deldfributions and capital expenditul
including building improvement costs, tenant imgment costs and lease commissions. Building impneves are capital costs to main
or enhance existing buildings not typically relateda specific customer. Tenant improvements agectists required to customize spact
the specific needs of customers. We anticipatedahatavailable cash and cash equivalents and aasfidpd by operating activities, toget
with cash available from borrowings under our rgirg credit facility, will be adequate to meet @inort-term liquidity requirements.

Our longterm liquidity uses generally consist of the ratient or refinancing of debt upon maturity (incluglimortgage debt, o
revolving credit facility, term loans and other ansred debt), funding of existing and new builditeyelopment or land infrastructure proje
and funding acquisitions of buildings and developmiand. Our expected future capital expendituiesstarted and/or committed n
development projects were $135.3 million at Marth 3014. Additionally, we may, from time to time, retirerae or all of our remainir
outstanding Preferred Stock and/or unsecured asttrisies through redemptions, open market repwehgorivately negotiated acquisiti
or otherwise.

We expect to meet our long-term liquidity needstigh a combination of;

» cash flow from operating activitie

» bank term loans and borrowings under our revolgirgglit facility;

» the issuance of unsecured d

» the issuance of secured d
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» the issuance of equity securities by the Comparth@Operating Partnership;
» the disposition of norere asset
2014 Financing Activity

During the first quarter of 2014, we entered inEparate sales agreements with each of Merrill Lyrigierce, Fenner & Smi
Incorporated, Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporate®&I Capital Markets, a division of BB&T Securitiel.C, Capital One Securities, In
Comerica Securities, Inc., Jefferies LLC, Mitsubi&i-J Securities (USA), Inc., Morgan Stanley & Qd.C, Piper Jaffray & Co., RB
Capital Markets, LLC and Wells Fargo SecuritiesC.lUnder the terms of the sales agreements, thep@myrmay offer and sell up to $25
million in aggregate gross sales price of sharesoaimon stock from time to time through such firmsting as agents of the Company ¢
principals. Sales of the shares, if any, may beentgdmeans of ordinary brokers' transactions o\ York Stock Exchange or otherw
at market prices prevailing at the time of saleprates related to prevailing market prices or egatiated prices or as otherwise agreed
any of such firms. During the first quarter of 201the Company issued 23,584ares of Common Stock at an average gross satesq
$38.29 per share and received net proceeds, afes sommissions, of $0.9 million . We paid lesnt$0.1 millionin sales commissions
Piper Jaffray & Co. during the first quarter of 201In early April 2014, the Company issued 50,883res of Common Stock at an ave
gross sales price of $38.38 per share and receigegroceeds, after sales commissions, of $1.9omill We paid less than $0.1 million
sales commissions to Piper Jaffray & Co. duringil&3914.

Our $475.0 million unsecured revolving credit fagilis scheduled to mature in January 2@G#®l includes an accordion feature
allows for an additional $75.0 millicaf borrowing capacity subject to additional lendemmitments. Assuming no defaults have occu
we have an option to extend the maturity for twditonal six month periods. The interest rate at@urent credit ratings is LIBOR plus 1
basis points and the annual facility fee is 20 dasints. The interest rate and facility fee arseblaon the higher of the publicly annour
ratings from Moody's Investors Service or StandaréPoor's Ratings Services. We use our revolvinglicriacility for working capite
purposes and for the shaetrm funding of our development and acquisitionvégtand, in certain instances, the repaymenttbéodebt. Th
continued ability to borrow under the revolving ditefacility allows us to quickly capitalize on ategic opportunities at shdgrm interes
rates. There was $275.0 million and $409.0 millmrtstanding under our revolving credit facility March 31, 2014 and April 21, 2014
respectively. At both March 31, 2014 and April 2014 , we had $0.1 millioaf outstanding letters of credit, which reducesahailability or
our revolving credit facility. As a result, the wsad capacity of our revolving credit facility at Mh 31, 2014 and April 21, 2014 w$$99.¢
million and $65.9 million , respectively.

On April 1, 2014, we prepaid without penalty theneening $123.7 milliorbalance on a secured mortgage loan with an effeatieres
rate of 3.11% that was originally scheduled to meatn July 2014 .

We regularly evaluate the financial condition of financial institutions that participate in ouedit facilities and as counterparties ur
interest rate swap agreements using publicly availanformation. Based on this review, we currergipect these financial institutions
perform their obligations under our existing fa@i$ and swap agreements.

Covenant Compliance

We are currently in compliance with financial cogats and other requirements with respect to ousaatated debt. Although we exp
to remain in compliance with these covenants atidsdor at least the next year, depending uponfeture operating performance, prop:
and financing transactions and general economiditons, we cannot assure you that we will contitmibe in compliance.

Our revolving credit facility and bank term loansquire us to comply with customary operating cowsiaand various financ
requirements. Upon an event of default on the rémglcredit facility, the lenders having at leadt®% of the total commitments under
revolving credit facility can accelerate all boriogs then outstanding, and we could be prohibitethfborrowing any further amounts un
our revolving credit facility, which would advergadffect our ability to fund our operations.
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As of March 31, 2014 , the Operating Partnershiptha following unsecured notes outstanding (fiousands):

Carrying Stated Interest Effective Interest

Face Amount Amount Rate Rate
Notes due March 2017 $ 379,68" $ 379,34( 5.85(% 5.88(%
Notes due April 2018 $ 200,000 $ 200,00( 7.50% 7.50(%
Notes due January 2023 $ 250,000 $ 247,68¢ 3.62%% 3.75%

The indenture that governs these outstanding metgsres us to comply with customary operating cewgs and various financial rati
The trustee or the holders of at least 25i@%rincipal amount of either series of bonds ceceterate the principal amount of such series
written notice of a default that remains uncuredra60 days.

We may not be able to repay, refinance or exterydoarall of our debt at maturity or upon any accatien. If any refinancing is done
higher interest rates, the increased interest esgpeauld adversely affect our cash flow and abitityay distributions. Any such refinanc
could also impose tighter financial ratios and otw/enants that restrict our ability to take agsidhat could otherwise be in our best inte
such as funding new development activity, makingasfunistic acquisitions, repurchasing our seasitir paying distributions.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the first quarter of 2014, Board of Tradedstment Company sold an office property to an lated third party for gross proce:
of $8.3 million and recorded a gain of $1.9 milliokiVe expect to receive aggregate net distributafn®4.7 millionin connection with ot
investment in this entity. As our cost basis idatént from the basis reflected at the entity lewesd recorded a net impairment charge or
investment of $0.4 million . This charge represdntiee other-thamemporary decline in the fair value below the cagyvalue of ou
investment.

Critical Accounting Estimates

There were no changes made by management to tiealcaccounting policies in the three months entiéatch 31, 2014 For ¢
description of our critical accounting estimates 8Management's Discussion and Analysis of Firar@ondition and Results of Operations -
Critical Accounting Estimates” in our 2013 Annuapdrt on Form 10-K.

Non-GAAP Information

The Company believes that FFO, FFO available fanroon stockholders and FFO available for commonkstoiders per share ¢
beneficial to management and investors and areriapoindicators of the performance of any equifiR Because these FFO calculati
exclude such factors as depreciation, amortizatiwahimpairments of real estate assets and gailus®sgs from sales of operating real e:
assets, which can vary among owners of identicatasn similar conditions based on historical @@stounting and useful life estimates, 1
facilitate comparisons of operating performancewken periods and between other REITs. Managemdigvee that historical cc
accounting for real estate assets in accordande ®#AP implicitly assumes that the value of reahts assets diminishes predictablye!
time. Since real estate values have historicadigrrior fallen with market conditions, many indusiryestors and analysts have considere
presentation of operating results for real estarmpanies that use historical cost accounting tinbefficient on a standione basis. As
result, management believes that the use of FFQ, &Filable for common stockholders and FFO avhlétr common stockholders |
share, together with the required GAAP presentatipnovides a more complete understanding of thegamy's performance relative to
competitors and a more informed and appropriatés lmswhich to make decisions involving operatifigancing and investing activities.

FFO, FFO available for common stockholders and BN&ilable for common stockholders per share are@®AAP financial measur
and therefore do not represent net income or roenie per share as defined by GAAP. Net income abdncome per share as definec
GAAP are the most relevant measures in determitiagCompany's operating performance because te8arteasures include adjustme
that investors may deem subjective, such as adoiing expenses such as depreciation, amortizatidnmpairments. Furthermore, F
available for common stockholders per share doéslepict the amount that accrues directly to tleldtolders' benefit. Accordingly, FF
FFO available for common stockholders and FFO akslgl for common stockholders per share should neseronsidered as alternative
net income, net income available for common stoltddrs or net income available for common stockhaldeer share as indicators of
Company's operating performance.
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The Company's presentation of FFO is consistertt WEO as defined by the National Association of |IRestate Investment Trus
which is calculated as follows:

* Netincome/(loss) computed in accordance with G/
e Less net income attributable to noncontrollingriests in consolidated affiliate
» Plus depreciation and amortization of depreciaplerating propertie

e Less gains, or plus losses, from sales of depriecigterating properties, plus impairments on depbde operating properties
excluding items that are classified as extraorgiitems under GAAP;

e Plus or minus our share of adjustments, includirepreciation and amortization of depreciable opegatproperties, fc
unconsolidated partnerships and joint venturesefiect funds from operations on the same basig); a

* Plus or minus adjustments for depreciation and #mation and gains/(losses) on sales of depreciapkrating properties, pl
impairments on depreciable operating propertiesi aoncontrolling interests in consolidated afféiatrelated to discontinu
operations.

In calculating FFO, the Company includes net incatteébutable to noncontrolling interests in thee@gting Partnership, which 1
Company believes is consistent with standard ingustactice for REITs that operate through an UPR&tucture. The Company belier
that it is important to present FFO on ancasverted basis since all of the Common Units mated by the Company are redeemable
one-for-one basis for shares of its Common Stock.

The following table sets forth the Company's FFBQFavailable for common stockholders and FFO abkiléor common stockholde
per share ($ in thousands, except per share ampunts

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013

Funds from operations:
Net income $ 13,57¢ $ 13,76(
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling inteseim consolidated affiliates (423) (203%)
Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 47,59 39,51¢
Unconsolidated affiliates:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets 1,031 2,01t

Impairments of depreciable properties — 1,02(

Impairment of investment in unconsolidated affdiat 1,35: —

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties (955) (427)
Discontinued operations:

Depreciation and amortization of real estate assets — 2,20¢

Impairments of depreciable properties — 1,12¢

(Gains) on disposition of depreciable properties (389 (1,244
Funds from operations 61,79: 57,771
Dividends on Preferred Stock (627) (627)
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers $ 61,16¢ $ 57,15(
Funds from operations available for common stockhalers per share $ 0.66 $ 0.67
Weighted average shares outstanding) 93,03( 84,86:

(1) Includes assumed conversion of all potentiallytdieiCommon Stock equivaler

In addition, the Company believes net operatingoime from continuing operations (“NOI"and same property NOI are usi
supplemental measures of the Compangtoperty operating performance because such anepriovide a performance measure of
revenues and expenses directly involved in ownéal estate assets and a perspective not immedagiphrent from net income or FFO. °
Company defines NOI as rental and other revenues éontinuing operations, less rental property
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and other expenses from continuing operations.ddrapany defines cash NOI as NOI less straligietrent and lease termination fees. G
REITs may use different methodologies to calcul«id and same property NOI.

As of March 31, 2014 , our same property portfalamsisted of 256 in-service office, industrial aethil properties encompassi@g.¢
million rentable square feet that were wholly owmleding the entirety of the periods presented (fdanuary 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014\s
of December 31, 2013 , our same property portfobosisted of 247 in-service office, industrial amdail properties encompassi2g.]
million rentable square feet that were wholly owleding the entirety of the periods presented (fdanuary 1, 2012 to December 31, 2D13
The change in our same property portfolio was aduthé addition of eight office properties encompasd.6 million rentable square fe
acquired during 2012 and one newly developed offioperty encompassing 0.1 million rentable sqfieeeplaced in service during 2012.

Rental and other revenues related to propertiesymmir same property portfolio were $23.8 milliand $4.0 million for thehree month
ended March 31, 2014 and 20li@spectively. Rental property and other expensiased to properties not in our same propertyfplotwere
$9.5 million and $2.2 million for the three mon#rsded March 31, 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

The following table sets forth the Company’s NOtlasame property NOI:

Three Months Ended

March 31,
2014 2013

Income from continuing operations before activity h unconsolidated affiliates $ 1322! $ 10,86«
Other income (1,399 (1,619
Interest expense 21,36: 23,86¢
General and administrative expenses 10,71« 10,58:
Depreciation and amortization 48,16¢ 40,08¢

Net operating income from continuing operations 92,06: 83,78:

Less — non same property and other net operatougrie (24,299 (1,775
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 77,768 $ 82,00¢

Rental and other revenues $ 148,45. $ 130,37
Rental property and other expenses 56,39( 46,59
Total net operating income from continuing operatims 92,06: 83,78:
Less — non same property and other net operatoarie (14,29%) (1,775
Total same property net operating income from contiuing operations $ 77,768 $ 82,00¢
Total same property net operating income from cwritig operations $ 77,768 $ 82,00¢
Less — straight-line rent and lease terminatios fee (2,74%) (4,917
Same property cash net operating income from contiring operations $ 75010 § 77,09
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES AB OUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding our market risk as of Braber 31, 2013, see "Quantitative and QualitatiigelDsures About Market Risk"
our 2013 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

SEC rules require us to maintain disclosure cositaold procedures that are designed to ensurenfbatiation required to be disclosec
our annual and periodic reports filed with the SECecorded, processed, summarized and reportéunvitie time periods specified in -
SEC's rules and forms. The Company's CEO and CR@ tancluded that the disclosure controls and plees of the Company and
Operating Partnership were each effective at tideoéthe period covered by this Quarterly Report.

SEC rules also require us to establish and maintaérnal control over financial reporting designedprovide reasonable assure
regarding the reliability of financial reporting &athe preparation of financial statements for exepurposes in accordance with gene
accepted accounting principles. There were no amig internal control over financial reporting ithgr the three months endéiarch 31
2014that materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, the Company's internal cohtreer financial reporting. There we
also no changes in internal control over financgdorting during the three months ended March 81.42hat materially affected, or ¢
reasonably likely to materially affect, the OpeamngtPartnership's internal control over financigaing.
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PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

During the first quarter of 2014 , the Company &ban aggregate of 4,4%hares of Common Stock to holders of Common Unité
Operating Partnership upon the redemption of adikeber of Common Units in private offerings exerfiptn the registration requireme
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act.Eat the holders of Common Units was an accredite@stor under Rule 501 of t
Securities Act. The resale of such shares wastezgs by the Company under the Securities Act.

The following table sets forth information relatéml shares of Common Stock surrendered by emplojeestisfy tax withholdin
obligations in connection with the vesting of reted stock during the first quarter of 2014 :

Total Number of Weighted
Shares Average Price
Purchased Paid per Share
January 1 to January 31 — 3 —
February 1 to February 28 — —
March 1 to March 31 39,86¢ 37.12
Total 39,86¢ $ 37.1%
ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibit
Number Description
1 Form of Sales Agreement, dated February 11, 20téng Highwoods Properties, Inc., Highwoods Realiyited

Partnership and each of the firms named thereiied(fas part of the Company's Current Report on F#ndatec
February 11, 2014)

12.1 Statement re;: Computation of Ratios of they@any
12.2 Statement re: Computation of Ratios of the Opega#iartnership
31.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of 8abanes-Oxley Act for the Company
31.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Pasimier
31.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302 of #zbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnership
32.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
32.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of #sbanes-Oxley Act for the Company
32.3 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 80éhe Sarbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Pasimier
32.4 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of §zbanes-Oxley Act for the Operating Partnership
101.INS XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation LinldeaDocument
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
101.LAB XBRL Extension Labels Linkbase

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, each of the registrants has dailysed this report to be signed o
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

Highwoods Properties, Inc.

By: /sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership
By: Highwoods Properties, Inc., its sole genegatmer

By: Is/ Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: April 29, 2014
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Exhibit 12.1

HIGHWOODS PROPERTIES, INC.
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED STOCK DIVIDENDS

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2014

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings/(losses) of unconsolidated affiliates $ 13,22
Fixed charges 22,79¢
Capitalized interest (56€)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 78¢€
Total earnings $ 36,23¢

Fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends:

Contractual interest expense $ 20,75(
Amortization of deferred financing costs 652
Financing obligations interest income (40
Capitalized interest 56€
Interest component of rental expense 867
Total fixed charges 22,79¢
Preferred Stock dividends 627
Total fixed charges and Preferred Stock dividends $ 23,42:
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.5¢

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Stock dividends 1.5¢




Exhibit 12.2

HIGHWOODS REALTY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES AND
RATIO OF EARNINGS TO COMBINED FIXED CHARGES AND
PREFERRED UNIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Three Months Ended
March 31, 2014

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations before equitgamnings/(losses) of unconsolidated affiliates $ 13,22
Fixed charges 22,79¢
Capitalized interest (56€)
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated &ifiés 78¢€
Total earnings $ 36,23¢

Fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions:

Contractual interest expense $ 20,75(
Amortization of deferred financing costs 652
Financing obligations interest income (40
Capitalized interest 56€
Interest component of rental expense 867
Total fixed charges 22,79¢
Preferred Unit distributions 627
Total fixed charges and Preferred Unit distributions $ 23,42:
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges 1.5¢

Ratio of earnings to combined fixed charges and Pferred Unit distributions 1.5¢




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2014

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofivQlof Highwoods Properties, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2014

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 31.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Edward J. Fritsch, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobwtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2014

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner




Exhibit 31.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Terry L. Stevens, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this Quarterly Report on FofvQlof Highwoods Realty Limited Partnerst

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatommny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisleading with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Registrant as of, andli@ periods presented in this
report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officers drate responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrard have:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurés tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Registrant, including its consolidatubsidiaries, is made kno
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahoigporting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable amsaraegarding the reliability of financial repogirand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the Registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preseémtdds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contrnols procedures, as of the end of the period coveydhis report based on st
evaluation; and

(d) disclosed in this report any change in the iReant's internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Regigs fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeadtf, the Registrant’s internal control over finahceporting; and

The Registrant’ other certifying officers and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internalrobtver financie
reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the if@bmmittee of the Registrast’Board of Directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controgéofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Regg’s ability to record, process, summarize and refiaincial information
and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisattifrole in the Registramst’
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2014

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offickthe
General Partner



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsdgroperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q tfoe period endetarch 31
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Csion on the date hereof (the “Report),Edward J. Fritsch, President and C
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanil8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 90t Sarbane®xley Act of 2002, tha

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/s/ Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch
President and Chief Executive Officer

April 29, 2014




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsdgroperties, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q tfoe period endetarch 31
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cimsion on the date hereof (the “Report;)Terry L. Stevens, Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursua8ta06 of the Sarban&3xley Act o
2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢
2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Company.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

April 29, 2014



Exhibit 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended March 31, 2014 as filed with the Séearand Exchange Commission on the date herbef“@eport”),l, Edward J. Fritscl
President and Chief Executive Officer of Highwod®perties, Inc., general partner of the OperaBagtnership, certify, pursuant to
U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 db#nbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly pmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Edward J. Fritsch

Edward J. Fritsch

President and Chief Executive Officer of the GehBeatner
April 29, 2014




Exhibit 32.4

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Highwsoddealty Limited Partnership (the “Operating Parth#™”) on Form 109 for the
period ended March 31, 2014 as filed with the Séearand Exchange Commission on the date herbef“@®eport”),l, Terry L. Steven:
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial OfficeHighwoods Properties, Inc., general partner ef @perating Partnership, certify, purst
to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 8@tdarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended; ¢

2) The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of
Operating Partnership.

/sl Terry L. Stevens

Terry L. Stevens
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officethe General Partner

April 29, 2014



